
 

 

   BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., June 29, 2018 
GHURA’s Main Office  

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  
AGENDA 

  I. ROLL CALL 

 

 

II. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – June 15, 2018 
 

                                                                                                                                            

III. CORRESPONDENCE AND REPORTS            Page(s) 

 

 

IV. OLD BUSINESS 

1. Board Action Item No. 037/18 

Update on the Construction of the Sinajana Central Precinct 
                    (Ref. Minute Nos: 099/17, 311/17, 330/17, & 006/18) 

 

 

V.     NEW BUSINESS 

               1.  Intent of Award …….…………………………………………. ………………………………………       1-7 
             IFB#GHURA-5-24-2018-AMP1 & 4, Addition of a New Drain Spout to its’  

                     GHURA 250 housing development 

 

2. Intent of Award ………………………………………………………………………………………      8-16 

IFB#GHURA-413-2018-CPD, Demolition of four housing structures in Dededo 

 

3. PY2018 Annual Action Plan (Draft) ………………………………………………………..     17-19 

 

 

VI.     GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting -  July 13th and 27th  

 

 

 

VII. ADJOURNMENT 



GHURA Board of Commissioners 
Minutes of June 15, 2018 Page 1 of 7 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 p.m., June 15, 2018 

GHURA Main Office, 1st floor conference room 
Sinajana, Guam 

MINUTES 

After notice was duly and timely given pursuant to the Open Government Law of Guam and 

the Bylaws of the Authority, the Board of Commissioners’ regular scheduled meeting of 

Friday, June 15, 2018 at 12:00 p.m. at the GHURA Sinajana Main Office, 1st Floor 

Conference Room was conducted. 

 

I. ATTENDANCE, QUORUM, AND CALL TO ORDER 

 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Thomas E. B. Borja, Vice-Chairman  
     Carl V. Dominguez, Member  
                                                             George F. Pereda, Member 
     Joseph M. Leon Guerrero, Resident Commissioner    
 
 
COMMISSIONERS ABSENT:   George A. Santos, Chairman (excused) 
     Eliza U. Paulino, Member (excused) 
 
 
 
LEGAL COUNSEL:   Anthony Perez  
 
 
 
MANAGEMENT & STAFF:  Michael J. Duenas, Executive Director 
                            Pedro A. Leon Guerrero Jr., Deputy Director 
     Melinda Taitano, Special Assistant 
     Albert Santos, AE Manager 
      
      

 

Meeting was called to order at 12:00 p.m. by Vice Chairman Borja who acknowledged 

the presence of the above attendees. The Vice Chairman then indicated that the 

minimum number of Commissioners required for a quorum was present and that the 

meeting could proceed. 



GHURA Board of Commissioners 
Minutes of June 15, 2018 Page 2 of 7 
 

Minute 

No. 

Ref. 

No. 

 

Approval of Previous Board 

Meeting 

Action 

By: 

 

125/18 
 
 
 

 
  126/18 

 Vice Chairman Borja called for a motion 
to be made on the approval of the 
Minutes from the previous Board 
Meeting on May 24, 2018. 
 
After review and further discussion 
by the Board Members, a motion was 
made by Commissioner Pereda, 
seconded by Commissioner 
Dominguez and approved by the 
Board, the Minutes of May 24, 2018 
as corrected. 
 

 

Minute 

No. 

Ref. 

No. 

 

Action Items from Prior Meetings 

 

 

Action 

By: 

 037/18 
 

Update on the Construction of the 
Sinajana Central Precinct 
 
Mr. Albert Santos reported to the Board 
that the bonding company is 
recommending that the contractor hire 
a construction management team.  They 
have identified the team and started 
negotiations to bring them on board to 
complete the work. Mr. Santos was 
pleased, because for the last two weeks, 
he and his staff were issuing stop 
notices for non-compliance for 
construction errors that have occurred.   
 
The contractor was at first hesitant to 
hire a team but due to recent events, he 
is now convinced it is necessary to do 
so.  One of the big items that he was 
referring to was during the last big 
rainfall, the form work had shifted 
before the cement was poured.  
GHURA’s staff noted the shift after the 
pouring.  
 

 

Albert 
Santos 

 



GHURA Board of Commissioners 
Minutes of June 15, 2018 Page 3 of 7 
 

Minute 

No. 

Ref. 

No. 

 

Action Items from Prior Meetings 

 

 

Action 

By: 

 037/18 
continuation 

 

Mr. Santos stated that he informed the 
bonding company representative, Ms. 
Tang, that based on the schedule, the 
signed contract and the change order 
that the completion date is at the end of 
August.  If it is not met, then L.D. will go 
into effect.  If things don’t go well, they 
can be barred and will not be able to 
obtain bids for other projects.   
 
In addition, the generator is on-island 
and will be placed into the structure 
before they proceed with pouring the 
roof.  The work should move quicker 
and go up faster. Otherwise, Mr. Santos 
stated that he will increase the 
retention to 20%. 

  

The project is estimated to be at 60% 
done. Mr. Santos stated he anticipates a 
completion date of November 2018.  
The difficult part would be getting the 
roof up. However, Ms. Tang informed 
him they are looking at bringing in 
additional staff to get the walls up 
quicker. 

 

The issue with GWA has been resolved 
and there are no plans yet for a traffic 
light to go up. Modifications will be 
done on the street with an addition of a 
decelerating lane. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



GHURA Board of Commissioners 
Minutes of June 15, 2018 Page 4 of 7 
 

Minute 

No. 

Ref. 

No. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

 

Action 

By: 

127/18 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

128/18 
 
 

 Intent of Award: IFB#GHURA-4-23-
2018-TRAN, Upgrade of Kitchen and 
bathroom on 6-units at Guma 
Trankilidat in Tumon, Phase II 
 
 
Mr. Albert Santos stated six contractors 
submitted a bid. However, the lowest 
bidder, Triple Tech Inc. was disqualified 
due to being non-responsive in 
submitting all the required documents.  
Staff met with the next lowest bidder, 
Arkana Pacific. Arkana Pacific had 
successfully completed a couple of 
GHURA’s public housing units that were 
placed under modernization. 
 
Work consists of removing an existing 
wall, gutting out the bathtub and 
putting in a shower, retiling the 
bathroom, retiling the floor, rebuilding 
the kitchen counter and installing LED 
lighting. Work will begin with one unit 
at a time to include moving the tenant 
to the manager’s unit while the work is 
underway.  They will assist with 
moving the tenant back to their 
renovated unit.  This is included in their 
cost.  The timelines given to the 
contractor to complete is 17 days per 
unit and 2 days between units. 
 
 
A motion was made by 
Commissioner Dominguez and 
seconded by Commissioner Pereda 
to award IFB#GHURA-4-23-2018-
TRAN in the amount of $94,000.00 to 
Arkana Pacific Contractors Corps. for 
the Upgrade of Kitchen and 
bathroom on 6-units at Guma 
Trankilidat in Tumon, Phase II.  
Without any further discussion and 
objection, the Motion was approved. 

Albert 
Santos 

 



GHURA Board of Commissioners 
Minutes of June 15, 2018 Page 5 of 7 
 

Minute 

No. 

Ref. 

No. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Action 

By: 

 

129/18 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 IFB#GHURA-04-13-2018-CPD, Firm 
or individuals engaged in lead-based 
paint activities with USEPA Certified 
inspectors to conduct lead-based 
testing of various developments  
 
Mr. Albert Santos stated there are 148 
public housing units in AMPs 1, 2, & 4 
that have tested positive for lead.  A 
construction company in Honolulu 
conducted the abatement. However, the 
files that cleared these units could not 
be located.   

 
Mr. Santos stated that he obtains data 
from Public Health to report to HUD 
every quarter stating if any individuals 
tested positive for lead poisoning.   
 
With GHURA’s upcoming REAC 
inspection, if there are any signs of 
paint chipping, GHURA is required to 
provide a report on how we plan to fix 
it.   If approved, this award will 
eliminate this reporting requirement.   
 
The contractor handling this type of 
service has to be certified by EPA.  The 
only certified contractor on island 
submitted a bid and ended up to be the 
sole bidder. HUD’s letter dated June 11, 
2018 was presented to the Board, 
approving the sole source.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Albert  
Santos 

 



GHURA Board of Commissioners 
Minutes of June 15, 2018 Page 6 of 7 
 

Minute 

No. 

Ref. 

No. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Action 

By: 

130/18 
 

 A motion was made by 
Commissioner Dominguez and 
seconded by Commissioner Leon 
Guerrero to approve a contract for 
IFB#GHURA-04-13-2018-CPD, Firm 
or individuals engaged in lead-based 
paint activities with USEPA Certified 
inspectors to conduct lead-based 
testing of various developments to 
Industrial Hygiene Professionals, 
Inc. for $37,000.00.  Without any 
further discussion and objection, the 
Motion was approved. 
 

 

131/18 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 Notice of Intent of Award: 
IFB#GHURA-COCC-018-007, 
Administrative Office Supplies 
 
Director Duenas stated for the past 
three years, GHURA has solicited an 
IDIQ for office supplies.  The reason for 
the IDIQ is to eliminate the work in 
having to do the whole procurement 
process when acquiring supplies.  This 
has relieved our administrative burden.   
 
One of the concerns expressed by staff 
was poor quality on some of the items. 
Therefore, we requested the vendors to 
submit samples to assist with our 
selection.   
 
Another concern especially towards the 
end of the year, was with previous 
vendors stating some items were out of 
stock.  We will continue to monitor the 
vendors for quality of the items and the 
availability of the supplies. 
 
Mr. Duenas stated there was only 1 
item that we didn’t get a response. 
Therefore, when the item is needed, 
staff will be required to go through the  

Michael  
Duenas 

 



GHURA Board of Commissioners 
Minutes of June 15, 2018 Page 7 of 7 
 

                          

  ADJOURNMENT 
 

134/18 There being no further business before the Board, a motion 

was made by Commissioner Dominguez and Seconded by 

Commissioner Leon Guerrero which was unanimously agreed 

upon, to adjourn the meeting. The meeting was adjourned at 

12:41 p.m. 

(S E A L )  

                  _____________________________________            

                   MICHAEL J. DUENAS 
                                                         Board Secretary/Executive Director 

Minute 

No. 

Ref. 

No. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Action 

By: 

     131/18 
continuation 
 

 
 
 
 

132/18 

 3 quotes procurement process. 
 
Mr. Duenas requested that the Board 
award item #72 to Emerald Wholesale 
and item numbers as shown in Table 
1.2 to National Office Supply and Guam 
Modern Office Supply.   
 
A motion was made by 
Commissioner Dominguez and 
seconded by Resident Commissioner 
Leon Guerrero to approve the award 
IFB#GHURA-COCC-018-007, 
Administrative Office Supplies to 
Emerald Wholesale, National Office 
Supply, Guam Modern Office Supply 
as shown as the Memorandum   
dated May 17, 2018 from the 
Executive Director in Table 1.2 not to 
exceed the $60,000.00 for the entire 
authority.  Without any further 
discussion and objection, the Motion 
was approved. 

 

Minute 

No. 

Ref. 

No. 

General Discussion / 

Announcements 

  Action 

By 

133/18 

 

 Next Proposed Scheduled Meetings:   

June 29th, July 13th, and July 27th             

 



 
Board Meeting of June 29, 2018

 
PAGE 1 of 19



 
Board Meeting of June 29, 2018

 
PAGE 2 of 19



 
Board Meeting of June 29, 2018

 
PAGE 3 of 19



 
Board Meeting of June 29, 2018

 
PAGE 4 of 19



 
Board Meeting of June 29, 2018

 
PAGE 5 of 19



 
Board Meeting of June 29, 2018

 
PAGE 6 of 19



 
Board Meeting of June 29, 2018

 
PAGE 7 of 19



 
Board Meeting of June 29, 2018

 
PAGE 8 of 19



 
Board Meeting of June 29, 2018

 
PAGE 9 of 19



 
Board Meeting of June 29, 2018

 
PAGE 10 of 19



 
Board Meeting of June 29, 2018

 
PAGE 11 of 19



 
Board Meeting of June 29, 2018

 
PAGE 12 of 19



 
Board Meeting of June 29, 2018

 
PAGE 13 of 19



 
Board Meeting of June 29, 2018

 
PAGE 14 of 19



 
Board Meeting of June 29, 2018

 
PAGE 15 of 19



 
Board Meeting of June 29, 2018

 
PAGE 16 of 19



 
Board Meeting of June 29, 2018

 
PAGE 17 of 19



 
Board Meeting of June 29, 2018

 
PAGE 18 of 19



 
Board Meeting of June 29, 2018

 
PAGE 19 of 19




